NO. 46688-1-II

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS
FOR THE STATE OF WASHINGTON
DIVISION II

STATE OF WASHINGTON,

Respondent,

v.

JUAN MADRAZO-MUNOZ,

Appellant.

ON APPEAL FROM THE
SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON
FOR CLARK COUNTY

The Honorable David Gregerson, Judge

OPENING BRIEF OF APPELLANT

Peter B. Tiller, WSBA No. 20835
Of Attorneys for Appellant

The Tiller Law Firm
Corner of Rock and Pine
P. O. Box 58
Centralia, WA 98531
(360) 736-9301

A. ISSUES PRESENTED ON APPEAL

1. The trial court denied the appellant his right to a fair trial under Washington Constitution, Article 1, § 3, and United States Constitution, Fourteenth Amendment, when it refused to allow the defense to elicit relevant evidence favorable to the defense.

2. The trial court abused its discretion in suppressing relevant evidence that the complaining witness J.N.S. was potentially exposed to precocious sexual knowledge.

B. ISSUE PERTAINING TO ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR

1. The appellant was convicted of two counts of child molestation in the first degree. Did the trial court error by suppressing evidence that the complaining witness J.N.S. possessed a cell phone depicting sexual acts, depriving appellant Juan Carlos Madrazo-Munoz of his due process right to present evidence to the jury that would rebut the assumption that J.N.S. had precocious sexual knowledge obtained from the appellant during the alleged acts? Assignments of Error No. 1 and 2.

C. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

In December, 2010 police responded to a report of suspected

molestation of J.N.S.¹ by the appellant Juan Carlos Madrazo-Munoz. 2Report of Proceedings (RP) at 138-40.² The allegation originated when J.N.S.'s mother—Jenny Thomas—was making Christmas cookies in her kitchen and asked J.N.S. if anyone had touched her inappropriately. J.N.S. alleged that Mr. Madrazo-Munoz had put his hand down her underpants and touched her vagina on two occasions, and that this had occurred at his house in Vancouver, Washington in July, 2010. 2RP at 142, 3RP at 326. Mr. Madrazo-Munoz and his wife Katrina were family friends of Ms. Thomas and J.N.S. frequently stayed overnight at the Madrazo-Munoz house on weekends to visit with their children. 2RP at 140-42, 151, 199. J.N.S. referred to Mr. Madrazo-Munoz as “Uncle Carlos.” 2RP at 200.

After J.N.S. accused Mr. Madrazo-Munoz of touching her, Ms. Thomas went to the Madrazo-Munoz house after midnight and told Katrina about J.N.S.'s accusation, and then called the police. 2RP at 143, 191, 200, 215, 216, 217.

¹DOB: October 6, 2000.

²The record of proceedings consists of four volumes:

1RP—November 20, 2013, December 4, 2013, December 13, 2013, December 16, 2013, March 18, 2014, May 8, 2014, July 31, 2014, hearings, and August 4, 2014, jury trial;

2RP—August 5, 2014, jury trial;

3RP—August 6, 2014, jury trial; and

4RP—August 7, 2014, jury trial, and September 17, 2014, sentencing.

J.N.S. was interviewed by a responding officer early in the morning after making the allegation. 2RP at 175.

Approximately two months after the allegation, Sgt. Barbara Kipp of the Vancouver Police Department interviewed J.N.S. in February, 2011. J.N.S. told the officer that Mr. Madrazo-Munoz put his hand inside her underpants and placed it on her vagina on two occasions. She stated that once he put his hand in her underpants while she was sleeping on a couch, and that he did the same thing a second time when she was sleeping in the bed of one of Mr. Madrazo-Munoz' children. 3RP at 251-54, 256-58, 305, 314. J.N.S. testified at trial that he had touched her vagina on two occasions. 3RP at 251-54, 256-58.

On October 4, 2013, almost three years after the allegation, Mr. Madrazo-Munoz was charged by information in Clark County Superior Court with two counts of first degree child molestation against J.N.S. RCW 9A.44.083. Clerk's Papers (CP) 1.

Prior to trial, the State sought to suppress testimony regarding pornography found by Katrina Madrazo-Munoz on a cell phone belonging to Jenny Thomas that was in the possession of J.N.S. 1RP at 69. The photos contained on the phone depicted Jenny Thomas performing oral sex on an unidentified male and were found by Ms. Madrazo-Munoz on a cell phone in

J.N.S.'s backpack in July or August, 2010. 1RP at 69. Ms. Madrazo-Munoz took the cell phone and did not return it to J.N.S. 1RP at 69. The defense argued that the photos were relevant because they showed precocious knowledge by J.N.S. and because it refuted the State's argument that J.N.S.'s visits stopped or were reduced because she no longer wanted to stay overnight at the Madrazo-Munoz' house. 1RP at 70. The trial court "provisionally" granted the motion to exclude this evidence from trial. 1RP at 76.

Trial commenced on August 4, 2013, the Honorable David Gregerson presiding. 1RP at 28-107, 2RP at 113-240, 3RP at 246-420.

During trial defense counsel renewed his request to introduce testimony regarding the cell phone containing sexually explicit "selfies" taken by Ms. Thomas. 2RP at 223. Outside the presence of the jury, Katrina Madrazo-Munoz stated that in 2010 she and her husband had found a cell phone belonging to Jenny Thomas in items brought to their house by J.N.S. 2RP at 224. On the phone Mr. Madrazo-Munoz found images of Ms. Thomas performing oral sex on the phone and showed the images to Ms. Madrazo-Munoz. 2RP at 229. The images appeared to be "selfies" taken by Ms. Thomas. She looked at pictures on the phone and found images of Ms. Thomas performing oral sex. 2RP at 225. She talked with her husband

about the images and they decided to keep the phone in a cupboard away from the children and did not return it to Ms. Thomas. 2RP at 226. She stated that Ms. Thomas did not ask about the missing phone. 2RP at 226. Defense counsel argued that the phone showed precocious knowledge of the child and was relevant because it showed a possible source of J.N.S.'s knowledge regarding sex. 2RP at 231-32. The court reiterated its pre-trial ruling that the proffered testimony regarding the phone and images contained in the phone is irrelevant and any probative value is outweighed by unfair prejudice. 2RP at 234.

Other than the testimony of J.N.S., the only evidence offered was the testimony of two officers who interviewed J.N.S., Jenny Thomas, her grandmother, her mother's friend, and Ms. Madrazo-Munoz. There was no physical evidence introduced at trial.

The jury found Mr. Madrazo-Munoz guilty of child molestation in the first degree as alleged in Counts I and II. CP 174, 176. In special verdict forms, the jury found that both counts were committed using an abuse of trust. CP 175, 177.

At sentencing the State requested an exceptional sentence of 120 months based on the special verdict finding that Mr. Madrazo-Munoz used a

position of trust to commit the offenses. 4RP at 432. Following consideration of a pre-sentence investigation report by Department of Corrections and after hearing argument from counsel, the court imposed sentence at the top end of the standard range of range on each count, and ordered the sentences to run concurrently for a total of 96 months. CP 210.

Timely notice of appeal was filed September 17, 2014. CP 226. This appeal follows.

D. ARGUMENT

1. **THE TRIAL COURT ERRED BY SUPPRESSING EVIDENCE THAT J.N.S. HAD POSSESSION OF A CELL PHONE CONTAINING IMAGES DEPICTING ACTS OF ORAL SEX, DEPRIVING THE APPELLANT OF HIS DUE PROCESS RIGHT TO PRESENT EVIDENCE TO THE JURY THAT WOULD REBUT THE INFERENCE THAT J.N.S. HAD SEXUAL KNOWLEDGE DUE TO THE ALLEGED OFFENSES.**

Juan Madrazo-Munoz was convicted of two counts of child molestation in the first degree. Under RCW 9A.44.083:

A person is guilty of child molestation in the first degree when the person has, or knowingly causes another person under the age of eighteen to have, sexual contact with another who is less than twelve years old and not married to the perpetrator and the perpetrator is at least thirty-six months older than the victim.

RCW 9A.44.083(1).

The Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States

Constitution, and article 1, § 21 of the Washington Constitution, guarantee a defendant the right to defend against the State's allegations and present a defense. These are fundamental elements of due process. *Chambers v. Mississippi*, 410 U.S. 284, 294, 35 L. Ed. 2d 297, 93 S. Ct. 1038 (1973); *Washington v. Texas*, 338 U.S. 14, 19, 18 L. Ed. 2d 1019, 87 S. Ct. 1920 (1967); *State v. Burri*, 87 Wn.2d 175, 181, 550 P.2d 507 (1976); see also *State v. Austin*, 59 Wn. App. 186, 194, 796 P.2d 746 (1990) (exclusion of evidence material to defense violates due process).

Defense counsel is traditionally allowed to mount a general challenge to the credibility of the witness or, more specifically, to reveal biases, prejudices, or ulterior motives of the witness. *Davis v. Alaska*, 415 U.S. 308, 316, 94 S.Ct. 1105, L.Ed.2d 347 (1974). Moreover, the defendant has the right to the admission of relevant evidence. ER 401, 403. Relevant evidence is that "having any tendency to make the existence of any fact that is of consequence to the determination of the action more probable or less probable than it would be without the evidence." ER 401. A party is entitled to admit relevant evidence, except as limited by constitutional requirements or as otherwise provided by statute, by the evidence rules. *See* ER 402. It is error to exclude relevant evidence absent a legitimate basis for doing so. *See, e.g., State v.*

Posey, 161 Wn.2d 638, 648, 167 P.3d 560 (2007) (appellate court reviews a trial court's decision to exclude evidence for an abuse of discretion).

Washington courts have often recognized that a child's precocious knowledge of sexual activity is corroborative evidence of abuse. *See, e.g., State v. Swan*, 114 Wn.2d 613, 633, 790 P.2d 610 (1990). Evidence of alternative sources of precocious knowledge on the part of a child witness is admissible, not to impeach the witness's character, but to explain an abnormally high level of sexual knowledge and to rebut the inference that the only way the child witness would have knowledge of sexual matters was because the defendant had sexually abused the child as charged. *State v. Horton*, 116 Wn.App. 909, 918-20, 68 P.3d 1145 (2003); *State v. Carver*, 37 Wn.App. 122, 125-26, 678 P.2d 842, *rev. denied* 101 Wn.2d 1019 (1984); *State v. Bailey*, 52 Wn.App. 42, 50, 757 P.2d 541, (1988).

Our courts have found that evidence that a child had another source of sexual knowledge is relevant to disproving the inference that the defendant is the source of the sexually precocious knowledge. *See State v. Kilgore*, 107 Wn.App. 160, 180, 26 P.3d 308 (2001); *State v. Carver*, 37 Wn.App. 122, 124, 678 P.2d 842, *review denied*, 101 Wn.2d 1019 (1984) (evidence of prior abuse of the alleged victim was probative "to rebut the inference [the child] would not

know about such sexual acts unless [he or she] had experienced them with defendant.").

In this case, the defense's proposed evidence—the testimony of Katrina Madrazo-Munoz that J.N.S. had her mother's phone in her possession, and that when Mr. Madrazo-Munoz looked at pictures contained on the cell phone, it contained "selfies" taken by Ms. Thomas depicting the act of oral sex—was offered as evidence relevant to the central issue of the child's credibility and also to document that the reason visits by J.N.S. were reduced was not due to the alleged molestation, but that the Madrazo-Munoz family was troubled about the pictures found on J.N.S.'s mother's cell phone and wanted to limit their contact with J.N.S. and her mother. 2RP at 233. The trial court erroneously excluded this evidence, ruling that mere possession of the phone by J.N.S. did not show that she had accessed the photos and that the proffered evidence was not relevant to the trial and even if relevant, its probative value is outweighed by its prejudicial nature under ER 403. 2RP at 234.

The trial court erred in excluding the relevant evidence of the possession of the cell phone and the images contained on the phone because this proposed evidence was relevant to rebut an assumption by the jury that J.N.S. acquired her precocious knowledge of the alleged acts through the

defendant. Evidence that the child had knowledge regarding sex before she ever met the defendant shows she knew of this act from another source. *See State v. Kilgore*, 107 Wn.App. 160, 180, 26 P.3d 308 (2001); *State v. Carver*, 37 Wn.App. 122, 124, 678 P.2d 842, review denied, 101 Wn.2d 1019 (1984). This evidence was therefore relevant and essential to the defense.

The only evidence of the alleged molestation entered in this case came from the child's statements; therefore her credibility was the critical issue. In the absence of evidence that the child learned about inappropriate touching from another source, her testimony to that act could serve to bolster her credibility with the jury.

Without some constitutional reason to exclude the evidence or any counter-balancing prejudice, it was error for the trial court to exclude the evidence. Moreover, the images on the phone serve to refute the State's theory that J.N.S.'s visits at Mr. Madrazo-Munoz's house were dramatically reduced because she was reluctant to go there after the alleged molestation.

The trial court's error below is reversible where it is one that has presumptively affected the final result of the trial. *See State v. Edwards*, 93 Wn.2d 162, 606 P.2d 1224 (1980). An error of constitutional proportions will not be held harmless unless the appellate court is able to declare a belief that it

was harmless beyond a reasonable doubt. *Chapman v. California*, 386 U.S. 18, 87 S.Ct. 824, 17 L.Ed.2d 705 (1967); *State v. Burri*, 87 Wn.2d 175, 550 P.2d 507 (1976); *State v. Vargas*, 25 Wn. App. 809, 610 P.2d 1 (1980). An error of non-constitutional magnitude is also cause for reversal where, within reasonable probabilities, the outcome of the trial would have been materially affected had the error not occurred. *State v. Cunningham*, 93 Wn.2d 823, 613 P.2d 1139 (1980); *State v. Zwicker*, 105 Wn.2d 228, 243, 713 P.2d 1101 (1986).

This case turned on J.N.S.' credibility. Mr. Madrazo-Munoz was denied his right to challenge her credibility with critical evidence capable of creating reasonable doubt in the minds of some or all jurors. The trial court's error likely compromised the verdict itself because this was a case with no physical evidence, vague allegations, and of particular note—a four year delay between the time of the alleged acts and the decision to charge Mr. Madrazo-Munoz. The central issue in the case was therefore the credibility of the child's allegation against Mr. Madrazo-Munoz. The evidence that J.N.S. could have been exposed to the images on her mother's cell phone and that she had prior knowledge of sexual activities was directly relevant to her credibility because it rebuts the implication that the child could only know about such a

thing if what she alleged was true. Without this evidence, the defense had a compromised ability to directly rebut the vague, four year old allegations made by the child. The trial court's error in excluding relevant evidence essential to the defense's case therefore requires the reversal of the convictions.