#### NO. 46688-1-II

# IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON DIVISION II

#### STATE OF WASHINGTON, Respondent

v.

#### JUAN CARLOS MADRAZO-MUNOZ, Appellant

## FROM THE SUPERIOR COURT FOR CLARK COUNTY CLARK COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT CAUSE NO.13-1-01840-3

#### BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

Attorneys for Respondent:

ANTHONY F. GOLIK Prosecuting Attorney Clark County, Washington

AARON T. BARTLETT, WSBA #39710 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney

Clark County Prosecuting Attorney 1013 Franklin Street PO Box 5000 Vancouver WA 98666-5000 Telephone (360) 397-2261

#

#### A. ANSWERS TO ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

- I. <u>THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT DENY MR.</u> <u>MADRAZO-MUNOZ HIS RIGHT TO A FAIR TRIAL</u> <u>BY EXCLUDING EVIDENCE.</u>
- II. THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS DISCRETION BY EXCLUDING EVIDENCE THAT MR. MADRAZO-MUNOZ PROFFERED TO PURPORTEDLY EXPLAIN THE VICTIM'S SEXUAL KNOWLEDGE.

#### B. <u>STATEMENT OF THE CASE</u>

#### I. <u>PROCEDURAL HISTORY</u>

Juan Carlos Madrazo-Munoz was charged by second amended information with two counts of Child Molestation in the First Degree for two incidents of sexual contact with J.N.S. between June 1, 2010, and September 1, 2010. CP 108-09. The State also provided notice that it would be seeking a sentence above the standard sentencing range based on the aggravating circumstance that "[t]he defendant used his . . . position of trust and/or confidence to facilitate the commission of the current offense" pursuant to RCW 9.94A.535(3)(n). CP 108-09. The case proceeded to trial before The Honorable David Gregerson, which commenced on August 5, 2014, and concluded on August 7, 2014, with the jury's verdict. CP 174-77; RP 130-428. The jury found Mr. Madrazo-Munoz guilty as charged, to include the aggravating factor for each count, and the trial court sentenced him to a standard range sentence of 96 months. CP 174-77, 207-218; RP 426-28, 436. Mr. Madrazo-Munoz filed a timely notice of appeal. CP 226.

#### II. <u>STATEMENT OF FACTS</u>

The defendant, Juan Carlos Madrazo-Munoz, and his wife Katrina Madrazo<sup>1</sup> were very good friends with Jenny Thomas. RP 139-141, 151-52, 189, 198-200. In fact, those three and their kids were so close they basically considered themselves family. RP 139-141, 189, 199-200, 210. Because they were so close, Ms. Thomas's two children, including her daughter, J.N.S., spent a lot time at the Madrazo household and would often spend the night. RP 140-42, 149, 151-52, 199-200, 210-11. J.N.S. referred to Mr. Madrazo-Munoz as Uncle Carlos. RP 151, 189, 200, 260, 283.

Around Christmastime in 2010, Ms. Thomas asked J.N.S., who was 10 at the time, if anyone had touched her inappropriately. RP 141-42, 144, 149, 151, 258, 261, 269. J.N.S. responded by telling her mother that Mr. Madrazo-Munoz had. RP 141-42, 151. Following the disclosure, a distraught Ms. Thomas called her best friend, Bernice Crotty, and asked

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Mr. Madrazo-Munoz and Ms. Madrazo separated in 2011 but apparently up to the time of the trial they remained married. RP 198, 220.

her to come over to the home. RP 142, 185-86, 190. When Ms. Crotty arrived, she observed J.N.S. and Ms. Thomas crying. RP 186. J.N.S. disclosed to Ms. Crotty what had happened to her at the hands of Mr. Madrazo-Munoz. RP 187-88.

Upset, Ms. Thomas and Ms. Crotty drove to the Madrazo home to confront Mr. Madrazo-Munoz. RP 143, 191. They arrived after midnight and did not speak with Mr. Madrazo-Munoz, but did tell Ms. Madrazo about J.N.S.'s accusations. RP 143, 191, 200, 215-16. When speaking with Ms. Madrazo, Ms. Thomas was crying, shaking, and upset. RP 200-01. Ms. Thomas told Ms. Madrazo that she would be calling the police, and Ms. Madrazo responded to her by stating "do what you have to do." RP 143, 191. Ms. Thomas called 911. RP 143, 187.

An officer responded to Ms. Thomas's house and spoke with Ms. Thomas and J.N.S. RP 174-76. The officer testified that when he was initially speaking with J.N.S. she came across as bright and talkative, but when talking about the incident with Mr. Madrazo-Munoz her demeanor suddenly changed. RP 175. When talking about the incident, J.N.S. put her head down and started crying so heavily she was unable to continue talking with the officer. RP 175. Both Ms. Thomas and Ms. Crotty were present for, and were able to hear, J.N.S.'s disclosure to the officer. RP

160, 178-180, 187-88. They reported that what she told the officer was consistent with what she told them. RP 160, 178-180, 187-88.

J.N.S. disclosed what happened to two other people. RP 280, 304. She told her grandmother, Shelly Thomas, that Mr. Madrazo-Munoz put his hands down her pants and played with her private parts and that she had asked him to stop. RP 280, 283. Shelly Thomas testified that J.N.S. was crying and very upset when she was talking about what had happened. RP 281. J.N.S. also told Sergeant Barbara Kipp what Mr. Madrazo-Munoz did to her and with Sergeant Kipp's help demonstrated to Sergeant Kipp how Mr. Madrazo-Munoz had touched her by rubbing her vagina with his fingers. RP 304-06, 314. Sergeant Kipp testified that J.N.S. told her that this happened on two occasions and that the morning after each incident that Mr. Madrazo-Munoz made a comment to effect of him being proud of her for using her manners. RP 305, 315.

J.N.S. testified at trial that twice while sleeping over at the Madrazo household she had woken up to Mr. Madrazo-Munoz laying behind her with his hands down her pajama pants and his hand on her vagina. RP 251-254, 256-58, 275. J.N.S. was 8 or 9 when the incidents occurred. RP 255. J.N.S. also testified that she told Mr. Madrazo-Munoz to stop on one occasion and that he did. RP 276. Furthermore, J.N.S. testified that on one of the following mornings that Mr. Madrazo-Munoz

said "[J.N.S.] was really nice last night. She had manners." RP 257. J.N.S.'s mother, grandmother, and Ms. Crotty all testified that following J.N.S.'s disclosure her behavior changed dramatically. RP 148, 188, 284. They reported that J.N.S's grades suffered, she began wetting her bed much more frequently, she gained weight, and she became more withdrawn and angry. RP 148, 162-63, 188-89, 284-85, 288. J.N.S would also "freak out" in public if she saw somebody that looked like Mr. Madrazo-Munoz. RP 285.

#### III. <u>EVIDENTIARY ISSUE</u>

Mr. Madrazo-Munoz sought on numerous occasions to admit into evidence, through Ms. Madrazo, that at one point in the past Mr. Madrazo-Munoz found a cell phone belonging to Ms. Thomas, which contained images of Ms. Thomas performing oral sex on a male, in a backpack that J.N.S. had brought over to Madrazo household. RP 69-76, 152-59, 223-30. Mr. Madrazo-Munoz argued that the cell phone pictures provided an alternate source of J.N.S.'s precocious sexual knowledge. RP 69-76, 152-159, 230-234. Mr. Madrazo-Munoz's offer of proof, through Ms. Madrazo, established that (1) neither of them confronted J.N.S. or Ms. Thomas about the phone or the pictures on the phone; (2) the phone was placed in a cupboard inaccessible to the children and never returned to Ms. Thomas; (3) neither of them had knowledge of whether J.N.S. viewed the

pictures on the phone, whether J.N.S. knew how to access the pictures on

the phone, or that she even knew that the phone was in the backpack she

had brought to their house. RP 223-30.

Notably, Mr. Madrazo-Munoz made the following two comments

regarding the admission of the purported evidence:

[I]f the State is welling to waive that argument [(precocious sexual knowledge)], and they're not going to raise it, then fine."

It's for precocious knowledge, Your Honor. I mean, that's what – that's what the argument is all about is precocious knowledge. If the State is going to waive the precocious knowledge argument and say but for Mr. Madrazo molesting the child, fine. *Then I don't need it*.

RP 231, 233 (emphasis added). The trial court adhered to its earlier ruling and stated that "under either [ER 401], the proffered evidence is in fact irrelevant, or if it is relevant, the relevance – the probative value is so thin in comparison with the risk of unfair prejudice, confusion or misleading of the jury or other considerations under [ER 403] that the objection is properly sustained." RP 76, 155, 158-59, 234. Consequently, the trial court did not allow Ms. Madrazo to testify about the found cell phone or its contents. RP 234. Moreover, no evidence was introduced suggesting that J.N.S. had precocious sexual knowledge nor did the State at any point argue that J.N.S. had such knowledge. RP 379-87, 407-416.

#### C. ARGUMENT

## I. <u>THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS</u> <u>DISCRETION WHEN IT PREVENTED MR.</u> <u>MADRAZO-MUNOZ FROM INTRODUCING</u> <u>IRRELEVANT EVIDENCE.</u>

"Questions of relevancy and the admissibility of testimonial evidence are within the discretion of the trial court, and we review them only for manifest abuse of discretion." *State v. Aguirre*, 168 Wn.2d 350, 361, 229 P.3d 669 (2010); *State v. Martin*, 169 Wn.App. 620, 628, 281 P.3d 315 (2012) ("The admissibility of evidence is within the sound discretion of the trial court and an appellate court will not disturb that decision unless no reasonable person would adopt the trial court's view.") (citations omitted). When a trial court's ruling on such matters of evidence is in error, reversal will only be required "if there is a reasonable possibility that the testimony would have changed the outcome of trial." *Aguirre*, 168 Wn.2d at 361 (citing *State v. Fankhouser*, 133 Wn.App. 689, 695, 138 P.3d 140 (2006)).

Here, the trial court properly concluded that Mr. Madrazo-Munoz's proffered evidence—a cell phone found in a backpack that J.N.S. brought to the Madrazo home, which was Ms. Thomas's and contained pictures of her performing oral sex on a man—was not relevant and that even if it did contain some probative value, that such value was substantially

outweighed by concerns of unfair prejudice. RP 234. Given that there was no evidence that J.N.S. knew that the phone was in her backpack, knew how to access the pictures on the phone, or ever saw the pictures, it cannot be said that the evidence of the existence of such pictures<sup>2</sup> on the cell phone at all illuminated an issue at trial. RP 223-30.

Furthermore, Mr. Madrazo-Munoz explicitly conceded that if the State did not advance an argument suggesting that J.N.S. had precocious sexual knowledge as a result of Mr. Madrazo-Munoz's crimes against her that he "then" did not "need it [(the purported cell phone evidence)]." RP 233. Because the State did not advance such an argument, Mr. Madrazo-Munoz has no basis by which to complain about the exclusion of the evidence. Considering the above, the trial court did not abuse its discretion in prohibiting the introduction of the cell phone evidence.

Moreover, even if the trial court erred in excluding the evidence, there is not a reasonable possibility that the testimony would have changed the outcome of trial. The introduction of the cell phone evidence could not have impacted J.N.S.'s credibility, especially in the light of the consistency of her story, the corroboration of that consistency, and the fact that she alleged Mr. Madrazo-Munoz touched her vagina with his hands and the pictures allegedly depicted an adult female performing oral sex on

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> No phone or pictures were ever produced. The offer of proof was just the assertions of Ms. Madrazo. *See generally* RP.

an adult male. The drastic difference in these sexual acts elucidates the irrelevancy of the evidence even if J.N.S. had seen the alleged pictures.

# D. <u>CONCLUSION</u>

For the reasons argued above, Mr. Madrazo-Munoz's convictions should be affirmed.

DATED this 11<sup>th</sup> day of June, 2015.

Respectfully submitted:

ANTHONY F. GOLIK Prosecuting Attorney Clark County, Washington

By:

AARON T. BARTLETT, WSBA #39710 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney

# **CLARK COUNTY PROSECUTOR**

## June 11, 2015 - 9:30 AM

#### Transmittal Letter

Document Uploaded:	3-466881-Respondent's Brief.pdf														
Case Name: Court of Appeals Case Number:	unoz														
Is this a Personal Restraint I	Petition?	Yes		No											
The document being Filed	is:														
Designation of Clerk's F	apers	Supplem	nen	tal Designation of Clerk's Papers											
Statement of Arrangem	ents														
Motion:															
Answer/Reply to Motior	ı:														
<ul> <li>Brief: <u>Respondent's</u></li> <li>Statement of Additional Authorities</li> <li>Cost Bill</li> </ul>															
							Objection to Cost Bill								
							Affidavit								
Letter															
Copy of Verbatim Report of Proceedings - No. of Volumes: Hearing Date(s): Personal Restraint Petition (PRP) Response to Personal Restraint Petition Reply to Response to Personal Restraint Petition Petition for Review (PRV)															
							Other:								
							Comments:								

No Comments were entered.

Sender Name: Abby Rowland - Email: <u>abby.rowland@clark.wa.gov</u>

A copy of this document has been emailed to the following addresses:

ptiller@tillerlaw.com